
Precision Fermentation Business Support
Service (BSS)
Guidance on the Precision Fermentation Business Support Service (BSS), including who is
eligible and how to apply

The Business Support Service (BSS) Pilot was launched on 22 September 2025 as part of the
Department for Science, Innovation and Technology funded Market Authorisation Innovation
Research Programme (IRP) and will run until 31 March 2026.  

It is designed to support companies wishing to submit applications for precision fermented
products to the UK market authorisation service, and those with existing applications.   

Precision fermentation?is considered to be a technology that?creates essential food components,
like proteins and enzymes, through bioengineering microorganisms to produce specific functional
components. For example, precision-fermented dairy is where cow DNA is put into
microorganisms like yeast so that the yeast can produce dairy without the need for traditional
animal farming.   

Also funded through IRP is a business guidance hub for innovative food products which provides
more accessible support for businesses looking to navigate the novel foods process.

Current eligibility

This pilot is available for companies who are planning to?apply for authorisation of their precision
fermentation product for the UK market, and those with existing applications. 

Benefits to prospective applicants

The service is designed to:? 

provide clarification and guidance on applicable regulatory requirements? 
provide high-level advice on the UK market authorisation process?? 
identify relevant information contained in existing guidance material? 

How we will use the information gained through the BSS
Pilot

Through the service, the FSA/FSS will gain insights from prospective applicants about the new
technologies, processes and ingredients being used to develop precision fermentation products.
This improved understanding will lead to a more efficient risk assessment process. It will also help
us anticipate when applications will be submitted for market authorisation and the type of
technology used.

https://fsa-services-eng-forms.food.gov.uk/regulated-products-application


Service details

Business support service functions

The focus of the BSS is to provide pre-submission support for businesses who are planning to?
apply for UK market authorisation,?though the service is also open to those with existing
applications.

Pre-submission support

Prospective applicants can engage with the FSA/FSS before submitting a dossier to gain clarity
on essential requirements and applicability of the guidance.

Post-submission support

Businesses responding to a Request for Information can access additional support through the
service to help them understand and address any missing information identified in their dossiers.?
 

Advice provided as part of this service will be general in nature and provided without prejudice. It
will not form part of the statutory process and should not be viewed as an authoritative or binding
statement as to the likely outcome of an application.?

Support provided will not extend to the writing, or refinement, of dossiers. It will not substitute the
need for prospective applicants to do their own work to prepare an application that meets the
requirements outlined in assimilated?Regulation (EU) 2015/2283.?

What is not covered by the pre-submission support function of BSS Pilot

The following are not included as part of the BSS Pilot’s pre-submission support function: 

information that goes beyond that which is available in the legislation, rules, guidance
documents or guidelines applicable to the application
the design of the studies to be submitted and questions related to hypotheses to be tested,
unless already covered in pre-existing guidance? 
formally reviewing prospective applicants’ draft dossiers and providing written feedback? 

Who is eligible for pre-submission support

To be eligible to engage with the BSS Pilot pre-submission support, prospective applicants must:
? 

be a registered company in one or more jurisdictions ? 
intend to submit an application for authorisation to place a precision fermentation product
on the UK market

Engaging with the pre-submission support service

To engage with the service, prospective applicants must submit a?pre-submission enquiry form
(PSEF1).?

Within ten business days of the PSEF1 form, the FSA/FSS?will:

https://fsa-services-eng-forms.food.gov.uk/regulated-products-application
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/eur/2015/2283/contents
https://forms.office.com/?redirecturl=https%3a%2f%2fforms.office.com%2fPages%2fDesignPageV2.aspx%3fsubpage%3ddesign%26token%3df1fea623b64b483da5078357710cf2be%26id%3d-VAcircBikym-pDrkG8Y6a3CHWbU3rpOjP1-JoZDodxUMjVJMzNXT1k2R0tSQk02WTBXQUlERVVMNS4u&auth_pvr=OrgId
https://forms.office.com/?redirecturl=https%3a%2f%2fforms.office.com%2fPages%2fDesignPageV2.aspx%3fsubpage%3ddesign%26token%3df1fea623b64b483da5078357710cf2be%26id%3d-VAcircBikym-pDrkG8Y6a3CHWbU3rpOjP1-JoZDodxUMjVJMzNXT1k2R0tSQk02WTBXQUlERVVMNS4u&auth_pvr=OrgId


1. verify the applicant’s eligibility and that the questions raised in the PSEF1 are within scope
of the pre- submission support service

2. notify the applicant as to whether their request has been accepted or declined

Tiers of pre-submission support available

Pre-submission support offered by the FSA/FSS will vary based on the FSA/FSS’s assessment of
each product’s ‘tier’: ? 

Tier 1 is for products in their final stage of development, with dossiers expected to be
submitted for approval within 12 months
Tier 2 is for products that are well progressed in their development, with dossiers expected
to be submitted for approval within the next 12 and 24 months
Tier 3 is for products in their early stage of development, with dossiers expected to be
submitted for approval in more than 24 months' time

Tier 1?

Support provided in Tier 1 will include up to two one-to-one meetings with the applicant to discuss
the specifics of their application and any technical questions that they might have. These
meetings will provide an opportunity for:  

The FSA/FSS to get a greater understanding of the proposed product and its associated hazards

The prospective applicant to enhance their knowledge of the regulatory process and receive
further clarity in respect to any technical questions

Tier 2

Applicants in Tier 2 will receive enhanced support in the form of written advice and, where
possible, one-to-one meetings.

One-to-one meetings will only be offered to Tier 2 applicants if the FSA/FSS has sufficient
resources, and there are compelling reasons to do so. Compelling reasons could include:

the product being non-routine or highly innovative, for example a first of kind innovation
the product is expected to be high profile and/or controversial? 
the provision of advice could significantly affect application timeframes or cost, for example
the prospective applicant has expressed they are ready to submit their dossier but are
questioning if they should undertake an additional study which would come at significant
additional time and cost
the product’s development would stall unless further clarity is provided on the regulatory
framework, and this clarity is unable to be sourced elsewhere, such as from an
independent regulatory specialist

Tier 3

Tier 3 support will include light-touch support from the FSA/FSS?in the form of written guidance
and public-facing webinars. ?? 

One-to-one meetings with Tier 3 applicants will only be offered in exceptional circumstances. 

Post-submission support



Post-submission support will mostly mirror the existing regulated products post submission
service offering. This includes, where necessary, the provision of one-to-one meetings.

What is not covered within post-submission support

The following are not included as part of the post-submission support service:?? 

information that goes beyond the information available in the legislation, rules, guidance
documents or guidelines applicable to the application
formally reviewing applicants updated dossiers and providing written feedback? 
discussions with the applicant that the FSA/FSS?does not perceive will deliver any benefit
in respect to progressing the application? 

Who is eligible for post-submission support

To be eligible to engage with the BSS Pilot post-submission support function, applicants must
meet all the below criteria: ? 

have applied for market authorisation to place a precision fermentation product on the UK
market prior to the establishment of the BSS Pilot, unless otherwise agreed by the FSA/
FSS, ?? 
have been issued a Request for Information by the FSA/FSS about their application, for
which the FSA/FSS is awaiting a response, or be seeking to raise a ‘highly relevant’
development in respect to their application with the FSA/FSS, and
have submitted a?post-submission enquiry form (PSEF2)?

In addition to the above general eligibility requirements, the FSA/FSS?will also offer limited post-
submission support to applicants that have:? 

applied for market authorisation to place a precision fermentation product on the UK market
prior to the BSS Pilot launch
not had a meeting before submitting their dossier ? 
subsequently been issued a request for information (RFI) by the FSA/FSS

Applicants falling into the last category should also submit a PSEF2 in order to access the
service.

In deciding whether an applicant is eligible to use the service, the FSA/FSS will also consider if, in
the context of the questions raised in the applicant’s PSEF2, further discussion would help to
progress the application.

Engaging with the post-submission support service

To engage with the service, applicants must submit a?post-submission enquiry form (PSEF2). 

Within ten business days of submission of the PSEF2 form the FSA/FSS will:

verify the applicant’s eligibility and if the questions raised in the PSEF2 are in scope of the
service
notify the applicant as to whether their request has been accepted or declined

Northern Ireland guidance

In Northern Ireland, novel foods and processes, including precision fermentation, must undergo a
safety assessment and authorisation before being placed on the market. Businesses seeking to

https://forms.office.com/Pages/DesignPageV2.aspx?subpage=design&token=f4cae7bffd03429da75ad1cfdbf2ae67&id=-VAcircBikym-pDrkG8Y6a3CHWbU3rpOjP1-JoZDodxUMFlDWEFORTJYRFRIUTlYWTBVN1QxSUdOMi4u
https://www.food.gov.uklogin.microsoftonline.com/organizations/oauth2/v2.0/authorize?client_id=c9a559d2-7aab-4f13-a6ed-e7e9c52aec87&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fforms.office.com%2Flanding&state=eyJ2ZXJzaW9uIjoxLCJkYXRhIjp7IklkZW50aXR5UHJvdmlkZXIiOiJBYkp2dldvTkhRN1RjS2tfQlRrM1FIY0VtdHkzOThLMU5GMzdSMTJiS1FJbjBvT1hCSzhWUGZuLTlIS0NQZU5nUERibUFQRmIwWlJ3V3RwUWhHaGF1OWciLCIucmVkaXJlY3QiOiJodHRwczovL2Zvcm1zLm9mZmljZS5jb20vUGFnZXMvRGVzaWduUGFnZVYyLmFzcHg_&response_type=code&scope=openid%20profile&response_mode=form_post&nonce=638919034250953908.MGRlMjVlZjktNDBiYS00ZjU5LTljZWItNzI0MzkyMjA2ZDQyNDJhM2MzZmMtM2U5Yy00MGVkLWIxOTAtOWY2YzIyMDI1MWJm&msafed=0&x-client-SKU=ID_NET9_0&x-client-ver=8.9.0.0


place their products on the NI market should follow EU rules and the European Commission’s
authorisation process. For guidance on starting this process, visit?the EFSA?website.  

Information on novel foods currently authorised for sale in the EU and Northern Ireland can be
found in the EU Union List of Novel Foods. The EU Novel Food Status Catalogue can also be
used to search for the status of specific products.  

Retail agri-food goods moving through the Northern Ireland (NI) Retail Movement Scheme will be
able to meet Great Britain public health requirements as set out in legislation, including in relation
to novel foods. NIRMS applies to pre-packed retail agri-food goods intended for final consumer
sale.?A novel food authorised in England, Wales or Scotland will therefore be able to move into
Northern Ireland via NIRMS. A list of these can be found in the register of novel foods. 

Contacting the team

If you have any questions about the BSS pilot, please contact the Market Authorisation Innovation
Programme team via e-mail at InnovationResearch@food.gov.uk.

https://www.efsa.europa.eu/en/applications/novel-food-traditional-food/regulationsandguidance
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/eli/reg_impl/2017/2470/oj
https://ec.europa.eu/food/food-feed-portal/screen/novel-food-catalogue/search
https://data.food.gov.uk/regulated-products/novel_authorisations
https://foodgov-my.sharepoint.com/personal/ben_rayner_food_gov_uk/Documents/InnovationResearch@food.gov.uk

